
Conservation Commission – Town of Spencer 
 

                   Minutes    
 

 Conservation Commission Meeting 
Wednesday, April 26, 2017 at 7:00 PM 

Town Hall, McCourt Social Hall 
 

               
 
The Meeting was opened at 7 p.m. 

 
Commissioners Present:   Mary McLaughlin, Margaret Emerson, Brian Graeff, Warren 
Snow, James Bouley, John Haverty, Kaitlin Desmarais 
 
Staff present:  Margaret Washburn  
 
Minutes Approved: April 12, 2017 – A motion to approve as amended 

(Bouley/Emerson) passed 7/0. 
 
Signed: Order of Conditions, Cranberry Meadow Lake 
  Order of Conditions, 3 Old Meadow Road     
  
7:28 p.m. Opened the Continuation of Public Hearing for Notice of Intent for Jim 
Hansen   
Property:  68 & 70 Donnelly Road, Spencer, MA   DEP#293-0898   
At the request of the applicant, the hearing has been continued to May 24, 2017. 
 
7:30 p.m. Opened the Continuation of Public Hearing for Notice of Intent for 
Spencer Fish & Game Club   
Property:  155 Mechanic Street, Spencer, MA   DEP#293-0901 
At the request of the applicant, the hearing has been continued to May 24, 2017. 
 
7:31 p.m. Opened the Continuation of Public Meeting for an Abbreviated Notice of 
Resource Area Delineation for Karen Hubacz-Kiley   
Property:  93 & 97 Hastings Road, Spencer, MA  
At the request of the applicant, the hearing has been continued to May 24, 2017. 
 

Conservation Commission Minutes  Page 1 of 6 
April 26, 2017 



7:33 p.m. Opened the Public Meeting for Request for Determination of Applicability 
for the Town of Spencer Water Department 
Property:  46 Smithville Road, Spencer, MA 
Mr. Steven Tyler presented the project.  The PVC pipe near the river was damaged by a 
bush hog and needs to be replaced.  The stones will be removed, the pipe will be replaced, 
and the stones will be put back.  A boom will be placed across the Sevenmile River.  The 
work will be completed in one day.  Ms. Washburn inspected and took photos.  There 
were no Conservation issues.   
       
A motion for a Negative Determination (Emerson/Snow) passed 7/0. 
 
Other Business: 
 
48 Paxton Road & 19 Woodchuck Lane:  Ms. Washburn said that Mike Aladich is 
requesting the following further stormwater bond releases:   
 
48 Paxton Road  
Bond Amount - $225,000.00 
Cost to Complete - $52,745.00 
Additional Requested Amount - $172,225.00 
 
19 Woodchuck Lane 
Bond Amount - $225,000.00 
Released - $100,000.00 
Cost to Complete - $24,070.00 
Additional Requested Amount - $100,930.00 
 
Ms. Washburn said the stormwater system at 19 Woodchuck Lane is not complete, the 
sub-drains have not been installed and a swale has not been done yet.  Ms. Washburn 
allowed them to continue to work on the site even though, as per the Order of Conditions 
the drainage system was to be completely installed and stabilized, it has not been 
completed.   
 
Mr. Guy Winters, Chief Operating Officer of Pro Tech Energy, said there is a section of 
the sub-drain that is not in.  He said they would like to get some stabilization before the 
drain is installed.  The site has been seeded and tackified.  There is hay and jute netting in 
the sloped areas.  They are just waiting for germination.   
 
Steve Tyler said the developer can wait and resubmit later after things begin to fully 
vegetate and become permanently stable.  Ms. Washburn said if the project went belly up 
and the town had to fix the area it would take a long time to mobilize it.  If there are some 
six inch storms before the area is stabilized there could be more problems than there are 
now.   
 
Mr. Graeff asked when the bond was released for 19 Woodchuck Lane.  Mr. Winters said 
it was released about five weeks ago.  Mr. Graeff asked what work has been done since 

Conservation Commission Minutes  Page 2 of 6 
April 26, 2017 



the release of the bond.  Mr. Winters said the grading work was done, the partial 
stabilization was done, and the trenches have been stoned.  Mr. Snow said he does not see 
any significant change since Graves did the review.   
 
A motion to accept Graves Engineering’s findings (Snow/Bouley) passed 5/2.   
 
Mr. Winters requested that the Commission have Graves Engineering update the report 
with site conditions as they now stand.  Ms. Washburn will inform Graves Engineering of 
the request.  Mr. Winters also asked that Mr. Tyler join the site visits because he would 
like to make sure the work is to Mr. Tyler’s satisfaction as well.     
 
Bixby Rail Trail Connection:  Jan Parke, President of Common Ground Land Trust, 
said there is a conservation restriction held around the perimeter of Bixby Trail.  She said 
Chief Parsons had sent an email that said to put the boulders so that a person can fit 
through.  Bill Shemeth, from Parks and Recreation, said he never received any 
information on the size or spacing of the boulders.  Ms. Washburn assumed from Chief 
Parson’s email that the trail will not be used for vehicular access.  The trail needs to be 
just wide enough for a person and a motorized wheelchair.  Steve Tyler said the trail is 
four feet wide which is wide enough for a wheelchair.  Ms. Washburn said information 
about the boulder size and spacing and sign size must be submitted.   
 
Mr. Tyler said our Rail Trail is not considered compliant with the Americans with 
Disabilites Act (A.D.A.).  He said he would like a party decided on to go out and stake 
the path.  South Middlesex Opportunity Council (SMOC) is willing to build the path.  As 
of now, they are not going into the CR land.  Mr. Tyler asked for a field visit with all 
stake holders present.  Mr. Tyler said this is an approved project and we either want the 
path or we don’t want the path.  The Planning Board has jurisdiction over boulder 
spacing.  The trail design approved is one of the best designs available.  The trail will 
help prevent freeze/thaw damage.  SMOC is asking through Mr. Tyler “do you want this 
trail?”  A motion to approve the trail connection (Emerson/Snow) passed 7/0.  A site visit 
will be done on May 20th at 9 a.m. 
 
Town culvert repairs/replacements:  Steve Tyler said they are looking to repair/replace 
rotting or failing culverts.  Erosion control measures were needed in many cases.  The 
work on each culvert should be done within one or two days.  The following culverts 
need to be repaired/replaced: 
 

• 22 Paxton Road:  This is a failing culvert and will be replaced. 
• Donnelly Road from southeast to northwest:  There are a total of five culverts. 

Stormwater improvements are possible at Simonis Farm.  The underground 
pipe will be shortened and a sediment forebay will be made.  At 68 & 70 
Donnelly Road, the outlet pipe will be extended to stop the undermining of the 
road.   

• East Charlton Road:  The culvert has two pipes that are rotted.  On the inlet 
side, the water comes out of a pond.  The swale has eroded over time.  Water 
flows under a stone wall and is undermining the road.  Mr. Tyler has met with 

Conservation Commission Minutes  Page 3 of 6 
April 26, 2017 



the property owner.  They will replace two pipes with one.  The roadside swale 
will be filled to protect the road.  They will do the work during low flow time 
of the year.  Four trees and some boulders will be removed to restore the 
stream flow and prevent water from undermining the road.  There is an icing 
issue further south on East Charlton Road.  The water will be caught in a sub-
drain under the road and the water will be directed to this culvert.     

 
Mr. Tyler said this is a partial list of Highway Department projects for 2017.  More will 
be visited at a later date.  There is a $19,000,000.00 road bill and it is preferred to have 
the highway department do the work rather than put out bids to subcontractors. 
A motion to approve the work under the town-wide Order of Conditions (Snow/Haverty) 
passed 7/0.  
 
Holmes Street solar farm:  Ms. Washburn said an Enforcement Order was issued on 
April 18, 2017.  A motion to ratify the Enforcement Order (Snow/Graeff) passed 7/0.  Ms. 
Washburn inspected on April 24th and noticed the contractor abided by the Cease and 
Desist Order in the Enforcement Order.  The entire site has been seeded and mulched.  
Only one wetland flag still needed to be replaced.  The detention basins have been 
constructed and temporarily stabilized.  Ms. Washburn said she is satisfied with the 
stabilization efforts that were made.  She recommends lifting the Enforcement Order 
including the Cease and Desist order effective April 26, 2017.   
    
Ken Lacourse said they would like to directional bore rather than cut trees in the BVW 
along the stream to get electrically connected to the school property instead of cutting 
vegetation in the wetland.  Ms. Washburn and Steve Tyler are in favor of directional 
boring rather than cutting in the wetlands.  A motion to approve the directional boring 
(Snow/Haverty) passed 7/0.   
 
Guy Winters apologized for the team missing the last meeting.  Mr. Graeff asked what 
caused the release of muddy water.  Mr. Lacourse said that one catch basin did not have a 
silt sack.  Ms. Washburn said that the new basin was not stabilized.  Mr. Winters said that 
all the people responsible are present tonight.  He explained to the Commission that he 
believes the cause was inadvertent and inexcusable.  They take the best management 
practices seriously.   
 
Mr. Tyler said we need to move forward; get the site stabilized and move on.  He said 
there were sequencing problems to put the basin in that position.  He said what’s done is 
done; plan better moving forward.  He said the missing silt sack was not the major issue.  
Hours after Mr. Tyler received the complaints there was no water loaded with silt on 
Holmes Street.  There was heavy silt running in the stream under Holmes Street.  He said 
looking upstream water coming from the solar farm was sediment-laden.  There should 
have been a riser pipe wrapped in fabric in the new basin.  Mr. Lacourse said they didn’t 
want to plug the new basin because filling with water may have destroyed it.  A motion to 
life the Enforcement Order and the Cease and Desist Order (Graeff/Haverty) passed 7/0. 
 
 

Conservation Commission Minutes  Page 4 of 6 
April 26, 2017 



 
19 Bixby Road:  Ms. Washburn said she and Mr. Graeff inspected today and took photos.  
There are three new point-source outlets on the east side of the steep hill where they are 
having all the problems.  She said the outlets are not shown on the plan.  Mr. Tyler said 
he believes the outlets had to do with roof drains.  Ms. Washburn said she and Mr. Tyler 
have been asking for weeks to replace the hay bales and they have not done so.  Wattles 
have been installed but they are not working.  Mr. Snow said the Order of Conditions 
have been violated in that the sediment controls have not been maintained.  The 
Commission told Ms. Washburn to issue an Enforcement Order and a Cease and Desist 
from all work.  The Order will state to use tackifier and jute netting, add an extra row of 
ESC’s half way down on the slope, and attend the next Conservation meeting.  A motion 
to issue an Enforcement Order (Graeff/Haverty) passed 7/0.          
 
66 GH Wilson Road:  Ms. McLaughlin read the Enforcement Order.  The Commission 
previously gave Mr. Maloney a copy of the inspection report and he is currently under a 
Cease and Desist.  A motion to ratify the Enforcement Order (Snow/Graeff) passed 7/0. 
 
May 10th meeting:  Mr. Graeff and Mr. Snow will not be at the meeting on May 10, 
2017. 
 
Burncoat Pond:  Ms. Washburn received an email of an updated Natural Heritage 
Endangered Species map which now shows Burncoat Pond as endangered species habitat.  
There was a rare plant found by a botanist.   
 
5 Meadow Road:  Ms. Washburn said there was an article in the New Leader from Steve 
Turner, from Charlie’s Diner, that stated it was the Conservation Commission that was 
requiring him to do the habitat restoration.  Ms. McLaughlin said this was not true.  Ms. 
Washburn will write a letter to the New Leader rebutting Mr. Turners article.  
 
301 Main Street:  Ms. Washburn received a complaint of grass and leaves being dumped 
in the wetlands.  Ms. Washburn and Mr. Graeff inspected and they are clearly dumping in 
the wetlands.  Ms. Washburn will send a Notice of Violation.   
 
Spencer Fish and Game:  Ms. Washburn said Selectman Gary Woodbury came in today 
and spoke with her about complaints he is receiving that the Commission is holding up 
the work at the Fish and Game.  DEP’s comments were just received this week.  Those 
comments were needed so Graves Engineering could complete their review.  Ms. 
Washburn told Mr. Woodbury that the work couldn’t be done until low-flow time of year.  
Ms. Washburn gave Mr. Woodbury a copy of DEP’s comments and Graves Engineering’s 
review.   
 
Treadwell Drive:  Ms. Washburn said she met with the contractor, Jason Brown, 
inspected and took photos on April 25th.  She created a punch list of items to be done 
prior to issuing the Certificate of Compliance.  Ms. Washburn closed the 2016 
Enforcement Order.   

Conservation Commission Minutes  Page 5 of 6 
April 26, 2017 



Conservation Commission Minutes  Page 6 of 6 
April 26, 2017 

Revised Plans:  The Commission said from now on they will require submission of 
revised plans when hand-drawn changes are made because it is costing contractors time 
and money.         
 
New Applications: None 

 
A motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:50 p.m. (Snow/Haverty) passed 7/0.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted by:        
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Lisa Daoust, Senior Clerk      
Development & Inspectional Services    
 
Documents reviewed at the 4/26/17 Spencer Conservation Commission meeting: 
 
Agenda for the 4/26/17 meeting 
Margaret’s report dated 4/26/17 
Minutes from the 4/12/17 CC meeting 
Continuance form for 93 & 97 Hastings Road (signed)  
Continuance form for 68 & 70 Donnelly Road (signed)  
Continuance form for 155 Mechanic Street (signed)  
RDA file for 46 Smithville Road, including Negative Determination (signed) 
Order of Conditions for 3 Old Meadow Road (signed) 
Order of Conditions for Cranberry Meadow Lake (signed) 
Enforcement Order for 66 GH Wilson Road (ratified) 
Approved plan for 19 Bixby Road 
Site inspection photographs dated 4/26/17 for 19 Bixby Road 
Conservation Restriction for 19 Bixby Road 
Photographs submitted by Steven Tyler for the 19 Bixby Road Depot Trail connection 
Photographs and inspection reports submitted by Steven Tyler and Margaret Washburn 
for 2017 culvert replacements on Paxton Road, Donnelly Road and East Charlton Road 
Inspection report and site photographs dated 4/26/17 for 301 Main Street re: complaint 
about dumping yard waste in a stream 
Enforcement Order for Holmes Street solar farm (ratified and closed) 
Approved site plan, inspection report and site photographs dated 4/24/17 for the Holmes 
Street solar farm 
Request for partial stormwater bond releases for 48 Paxton Road and 19 Woodchuck 
Lane  
 


